
Town Meeting Agenda  Page 1 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 

 

TOWN MEETING AGENDA 

TOWN OFFICE – 300A SOUTH SETON AVENUE 

MONDAY, MAY 1, 2023 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. FUTURE MEETINGS 

FY24 Budget Meeting: Monday, May 15, 2023 at 7:00 pm (Town Office & Zoom) 
Park’s Committee Meeting: Tuesday, May 16, 2023 at 7:30 pm (Town Office) 
Planning Commission Meeting: Monday, May 22, 2023 at 7:00 pm (Town Office & 
Zoom) 
MEETING ITEMS 
A. APPROVE MINUTES: April 3, 2023 
B. POLICE REPORT 
C. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
D. TOWN PLANNER’S REPORT 
E. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
F. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
G. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
H. ADMINSTRATIVE BUSINESS 

1. For consideration, FredRock Disc Golf request for a location to place a 
storage shed in E. Eugene Myers Community Park. 

2. For discussion, tree replacements near parking lot in E. Eugene Myers Park. 
I. CONSENT AGENDA (NONE) 
J. TREASUERER’S REPORT 
K. PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 
L. AGENDA ITEMS (DETAILS ATTACHED) 

1. For consideration, approval of bid to construct the Creamery Road Pump 
Station. 

2. For consideration, approval of engineering change order amendment #4 with 
RK&K for the Creamery Road Pump Station. 

3. For consideration, approval of engineering change order amendment #5 with 
RK&K for the Creamery Road Pump Station.  

4. For consideration, approval of supplemental Resolution 2023-02R to replace 
the terms of the Creamery Road Pump Station. 

5. Initial presentation of Fiscal Year 2024 budget. 
6. For consideration, FY22 budget transfers to the capital projects for 

consideration. 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 2 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

7. For consideration, approval of policy P23-01 adding one month and one-year 
options to the parking permits. 

M. SET AGENDA FOR NEXT MEETING: JUNE 5, 2023 
4. SIGN APPROVED TEXT AMENDMENTS AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 
5. ADJOURN  

 
 
Zoom Link: 

 
 
You are invited to a Zoom meeting.  
When: May 1, 2023 07:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada)  
 
Register in advance for this meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZMkc-GvrDguHdXt1OuxYTx6w1iaTlRAiCcf  
 
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about 
joining the meeting.  
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 3 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

A. APPROVE MINUTES 
 

MINUTES 
TOWN MEETING 

APRIL 3, 2023 
TOWN OFFICE – 300A SOUTH SETON AVENUE 

 
Present:  Elected Officials - Mayor Donald Briggs; Commissioners: Timothy O’Donnell, 

President; Joseph Ritz III, Vice President; Clifford Sweeney, Treasurer; Frank Davis; and Amy 
Boehman-Pollitt. Staff Present - Cathy Willets, Town Manager; Sabrina King, Town Clerk; Cole 
Tabler, Accounting Supervisor; Jessica Housaman Recorder. Others Present – Deputy Honaker 

 

I. Call to Order  
A quorum being present, Commissioner Timothy O’Donnell, President of the Board of 
Commissioners, called the April 3, 2023 town meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Pledge of Allegiance 
was recited. Upcoming meetings were announced. 

Approval of Minutes 
Commissioner Sweeney motioned to accept the March 13, 2023 town meeting minutes as 
presented; second by Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was 
accepted.  
 
Police Report: 
Deputy Honaker presented the police report from March 2023 (exhibit attached).  
 
Town Managers Report: 
Ms. Willets, Town Manager, presented the Manager’s Report from February 2023 (exhibit in 
agenda packet). Ms. Willets highlighted key points in her report and noted that the time of the 
report, Rainbow Lake was 16.6’feet at the spillway level. The Town produced an average of 
220,464GPD and consumed an average of 234,309GPD and the amount of Backwash Water in 
the month of February is (19.3%). Ms. Willets announced that Town staff will be conducting 
Hydrant Flushing the week of the 17th of April and the Town will post updates with more 
information. 
 
Town Planners Report:  
Najila Ahsan, Town Planner presented the Town Planner’s Report from February 2023 (exhibit 
in agenda packet). Ms. Ahsan highlighted key points in her report and noted the Town has 
submitted a Progress report to the Chesapeake Bay Trust for the Silo Hill SWM basin retrofit. 
She has processed numerous permits and announced there have been development updates. Ms. 
Ahsan also mentioned Ripley’s Creamery will be open April 2023 from their ice cream truck.  
 
Commissioner Comments:  
• Commissioner Amy Boehman-Pollitt: She announced that her and her family attended the 

Knights of Columbus Easter egg hunt. She expressed her thanks to Kadeem Brim and the 
CAC members for the continued progress for the Farmer’s Market. She also gave her thanks 
to Jack Deatherage and the volunteers on working together to get the Community Garden 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 4 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

complete. She mentioned that April 22nd is Earth Day and there will be Community Park 
Clean-Up Day from 9am – 12pm and afterwards, the Town will be hosting Earth Day behind 
the Town Office from 12pm – 2pm where there will be food and activities for the children. 
Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt also mentioned that she did speak with Town Staff about the 
water/sewer rates and has a new understanding for the increase. 

• Commissioner Ritz III: He announced that he and his son Edwin attended on March 29th the 
kick-off for the new Community Garden located next door behind the rear of the Farmer’s 
Market site. He gave a huge thanks to Jack Deatherage and his wife Wanda for spear heading 
the project. He also gave thanks to Brian and Melissa McKenney, Tracey Lewis, Dianne 
Walbrecker, Rebecca Ness and her son, and Ms. Ruby who helped that night.  

• Commissioner Davis: He announced that he had the opportunity to speak with Will 
Valentine, the State Delegate. He noted that he would like to have a Town Hall meeting in 
the future to discuss the lack of funding for Western Maryland and let everyone’s voice be 
heard. 

• Commissioner Sweeney: He announced that Little League will be starting in Emmitsburg and 
asked everyone to be careful when driving through the parks. He also mentioned that the 
Lions Club is gearing up for Heritage Day in June and he is thankful for how much everyone 
is giving to this event. He also wished everyone a Happy Easter.  

• Commissioner O’Donnell: He gave thanks to Jack Deatherage for getting the Community 
Garden up and running and his hats off to all the volunteers. He announced that there will be 
a group of 120 – 200 mountain bikers coming on April 29th and 30th  in Town. He briefly 
explained that this program is to help make safe places and mountain biking for girls. He 
noted that he would like to see more trails in the future in the Town, and he briefly explained 
each trail the Town has to offer. He also mentioned that he met with a board member from 
the Seton Center who would like to be more involved in Community Day and suggested 
having a Turkey Trot in the summer with a different course through the park.  

 
Mayor’s Comments:  
Mayor Briggs attended numerous meetings in March 2023. He announced that he and his wife 
Libby attended the first ride for Transit on Saturday, April 1st. He briefly explained the route that 
it takes from downtown Frederick to Thurmont and Emmitsburg. Mayor Briggs gave his 
congrats for the Knights of Columbus for hosting the Easter egg hunt in Town. He also gave 
thanks to Jack Deatherage for helping with the Community Garden. He also pointed out the 
Ukraine shadowbox with the Proclamation from the Town and the Sister City Lutsk and asked to 
keep them in your thoughts and prayers.  
 
Public Comments: 
Dennis Ebaugh, Town Resident- He told the Board that he had printed out copies of the previous 
minutes from past meetings and expressed some clarifications. He gave thanks to Richard 
Lindsay for helping him get in contact with State Highway for the storm drain and sidewalk. 
Carolyn Miller, Town Resident- She gave her thanks for helping to remove the trees down at 
Emmit Gardens. 
 
Administrative Business: 

(1.) For consideration, Proclamation declaring April 2023 Child Abuse Prevention 
Month.  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 5 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

Before moving to the Administrative Business, Kristen Dunn came on behalf of the Frederick 
County Child Advocacy Center and gave her thanks to the Board on supporting their cause. She 
also read out loud the bookmark that was provided to the Board to bring awareness of what the 
Child Advocacy Center has accomplished in the past year. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Ritz III motioned to accept the Proclamation declaring April 2023 Child 
Abuse Prevention Month; second by Commissioner Davis. Yeas – 5; Nays - 0. The motion was 
adopted. 
 

(2.) For consideration, Proclamation declaring April 22, 2023 Earth Day in the Town of 
Emmitsburg. Motion: Commissioner Sweeney motioned to accept the Proclamation 
declaring April 22, 2023 Earth Day in the Town of Emmitsburg; second by 
Commissioner Davis. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was adopted. 

 
Consent Agenda: 
Motion: Commissioner Davis motioned to accept Glenn Blanchard’s resignation from the 
Planning Commission; second by Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The 
motion was adopted. 
 
Treasurer’s Report: 
Commissioner Sweeney presented the Treasurer’s Report for March 2023 (exhibit in agenda 
packet).  
 
Planning Commission Report: 
Commissioner Ritz presented the report. He noted that the Commission last met on March 27th, 
and he wanted to point out that Village Liquors is seeking to amend their development changes. 
He also announced that Ms. Ahsan and Chris Jakubiak; Town Planner Consultant, presented 
work program for the Planning Commission 2023.  
 
Najila stepped down at 7:54 pm.  
Cole Tabler took his seat at 7:55 pm.  
 
II. Agenda Items 
Agenda #1 – Hold a public hearing then consideration of ordinance 2023-05 which would 
increase water and sewer rates over a five – year period. Motion: Commissioner Sweeney 
motioned to close the Town meeting at this moment to open the public hearing regarding 
ordinance 2023-05 regarding the increase water and sewer rates over a five – year period; second 
by Commissioner Ritz III. 5 – Yeas; 0 – Nays. The motion was adopted. 
 
Town Meeting closed at 7:56 pm. 
Public hearing open at 7:56 pm. 
 
Commissioner O’Donnell reviewed the process of how the public hearing will follow. 

Mayor Briggs asked Ms. Willets how the Town advertised for the public hearing for the water 
and sewer rate. Ms. Willets responded that the Town advertised in numerous social media 
outlets, on March 16th in the Frederick News Post, as well as the Emmitsburg News Journal, 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 6 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

Catoctin Banner, Town Website, Channel 99, and Email Newsletter. She briefly re-stated the 
history from the last five meetings related to the water/sewer rates, the 90-day reserve, the 
revenue requirements to maintain the water fund and how USDA will not fund projects if water 
or sewer funds are not self-sustaining. 

Commissioner Davis asked Town Staff when the last time the Town raised fees and taxes and 
Ms. Willets replied that it was lowered by the previous board. Mr. Tabler added that Real Estate 
tax went down slightly a few years ago. 

Commissioner O’Donnell made an analogy with Catoctin High School and the Town of how the 
structure has been holding up over all the years and how the staff takes great pride in maintaining 
the structure. He explained that the school is old and that the system needs to be replaced and 
that is how the Towns water infrastructure is. He went on to express how imperative it is that the 
Town upgrades the system to keep the Town moving forward. 

Michael Turnquist, Town Resident- He expressed his concerns about the increased rates for 
residents over the six-thousand gallons since he was impacted from the last increase fourteen 
years ago. He also explained that this increase will affect larger families and those on fixed 
incomes will suffer the most hardship. 

Eric Sloane, Town Resident- He stated that this was a problem before many of them were around 
and how this issue was pushed down the road. He explained that this is something that must be 
done and urged the Commissioners to vote yes.  

Dennis Ebaugh, Town Resident- He expressed his concerns about the rate increase and how he 
does not agree with the numbers. He went onto to explain the breakdown of the increase for his 
household and how this affects families with a fixed income. 

Chuck Farkus, Town Resident- He asked if the County has been approached about this issue and 
if they would be able to help. He expressed his concerns about the rate increase and how it will 
affect other users in the future. 

Carolyn Miller, Town Resident- She asked if families in poverty and fixed incomes were 
considered with the rates. She also asked if the County was approached about a waiver for those 
families. 

Commissioner Ritz III wanted to speak about the six-thousand gallons minimum each quarter 
and how he looked further into it. He also mentioned that he wished he had asked Town Staff 
and the consultant to see a chart based off users, using less than six-thousand gallons. He 
explained that this increase will impact most families and feels that there will be an increase in 
receiving late water payments. Commissioner Ritz III also knows that the rates must be increased 
due to increased cost to maintain the water infrastructure and is unfortunate that this must happen 
and feels that it is awfully aggressive.   

Commissioner Davis spoke about how residents were against the proposed development and how 
residents are against the raised fees, and he asked how will the Town continue to operate? He 
asked Ms. Willets for a breakdown of the cost showing what the increase rate would be and she 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 7 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

briefly explained each from per day to per month, per year and the overall impact after five 
years. Commissioner Davis expressed that he would rather vote for the five-year plan now and 
come back in three years to re-evaluate. He used an example of the brown water that occurred 
four years ago and knows the problem is still there and explained that the board has a 
responsibility to keep that from happening again. He noted how the cost of living has increased 
and will only continue to increase, and if the Town waits any longer that will cost even more. 
Commissioner Davis suggested that if this was his business, he would make the smart decision to 
do this now rather than wait. 

Commissioner O’Donnell explained that the Town does not qualify for help until the Town 
shows an increase in revenue. He explained that this increase in fees is how the Town will be 
able to qualify for those funds in the future and that this is something that must be done to get 
help.  

Commissioner Sweeney explained that this issue had been pushed back for twenty-five years 
because they did not want to burden the residents and noted that the rates were increased only 
twice in those years. He knows that this cannot be pushed back and gave an example of how the 
old water treatment plant broke down the same day as the new one opened. He also listed the 
reason why it is important to raise the rates due to inflation of the cost of upgrading the water 
infrastructure. 

Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt spoke about how she did her own research on how the USDA 
operates and how help is out there. She explained that USDA can give assistance only if the 
Town starts trending up and at the rate the Town is now, it’s considered bankrupt. She also 
acknowledges that Town Staff did present the 10%, 25% and 30% and did look at those numbers 
but that would not help. Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt also expressed that she does not want to 
make this decision but knows that this must be done. 

Commissioner Davis added that he is shocked there are five people in the room out of 1200 
homes and that he thought the office would be filled.  

Motion: Commissioner Sweeney motioned to close the public hearing and resume the Town 
meeting; second by Commissioner Davis. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was adopted. 

8:59 pm closed public hearing. 

Mayor Briggs expressed how it is very tough to be here and acknowledges how he would have 
liked to have done this three years ago but with the pandemic that wouldn’t have been the right 
thing to do. He admitted that it would have been irresponsible of him if he did not encourage 
Staff to work on the rate increase. He explained that water is necessary for everyday living. He 
thanked all who came out and that everyone was very polite. Mayor Briggs said that this is the 
Town’s responsibility to serve and would not be serving the people if they did not address this. 
He commended the Commissioners for their vote and thanked everyone that came out. 

Motion: Commissioner Davis motioned to accept ordinance 2023-05 which would increase water 
and sewer rates over a five – year period; second by Commissioner Sweeney. Yeas - 4; Nays - 1. 
The motion was adopted. 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 8 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

Agenda #2 – Hold a public hearing then consideration of ordinance 2023-04 which would add 
allowable projection of fences over a 4 – feet high on corner lots for consideration. Motion: 
Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt motioned to close the town meeting at this moment to open the 
public hearing regarding ordinance 2023-04 which would add allowable projection of fences 
over a 4 – feet high on corner lots for consideration; second by Commissioner Davis. The motion 
was adopted. 5 – Yeas; 0 – Nays. The motion was adopted. 

Town meeting close at 9:05 pm. 
Public hearing open at 9:05 pm. 
 
Ms. Ahsan presented the proposed new amendment and read out loud the new language. She 
gave a brief background on how this came to be voted on tonight by the board. She explained the 
boundary line from the photo (attached in agenda packet). Ms. Ahsan noted that the current 
ordinance does allow 6-foot fences on non-corner lots but the newly proposed ordinance gives 
more clarification.  

Commissioner Ritz III wanted to commend Staff, the Board of Appeals and everyone involved 
for taking a reasonable approach and revising the code.  

Commissioner Davis apologized to the residents that were put through this and thanked them for 
sticking with the Town.  

Public hearing closed 9:14 pm.  

Motion: Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt motioned to accept ordinance 2023-04 which would add 
allowable projection of fences over a 4 – feet high on corner lots for consideration; second by 
Commissioner Davis. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was adopted. 

Agenda #3 – For consideration, approval of Frederick County Sheriff’s Office contract FY24. 
Ms. Willets presented the Frederick County Sheriff's Office contract that the Town has approved 
since the Town has contracted with the Sheriff’s Office. She explained the FY24 contractual cost 
and that there is a 5.1% increase from FY23 contract cost. She explained that the Sheriff stated 
that this is due to an increase to uniform law enforcement pay scale and associated fringe 
benefits. 

Motion: Commissioner Sweeney motioned to accept the approval contract settlement for 
$286,060.00 for the FY24 Frederick County Sheriff’s Office contract; second by Commissioner 
Ritz III. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was adopted. 

Agenda # 4 – FY2022 budget transfers to the capital projects fund for consideration. 
POSTPONED UNTIL THE MAY 1ST TOWN MEETING. 

Agenda #5 – For consideration, ordinance 2023-06 which would allow a business owner with the 
Town limits to be a member of the Citizens Advisory Committee. WITHDRAWN BY 
COMMISISONER. 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 9 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

Set Agenda Items for May 1, 2023 Town Meeting 

Agenda Items: (1.) For consideration, approval of bid to construct the Creamery Road Pump 
Station. (2.) For consideration, approval of engineering change order amendment #4 with RK&K 
for the Creamery Road Pump Station. (3.) For consideration, approval of engineering change 
order amendment #5 with RK&K for the Creamery Road Pump Station. (4.) Initial presentation 
of Fiscal Year 2024 budget. (5.) For consideration, FY22 budget transfers to the capital projects 
for consideration. (6.) For consideration, approval of policy P23-01 adding one month and one-
year options to the parking permits. Administrative Business: (1.) For consideration, FredRock 
Disc Golf request for a location to place a storage shed in E. Eugene Myers Community Park. 
(2.) For discussion, tree replacement near parking lot in E. Eugene Myers Park. Consent Items: 
(NONE) 

Motion: Commissioner Ritz III motioned to accept the May 1, 2023 Town meeting agenda as 
presented; second by Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was 
adopted/rejected. 

III. Sign Approved Text Amendments and/or Resolutions  

IV.  Adjournment 

 With no further business, Commissioner Sweeney motioned to adjourn the April 3, 2023 
town meeting at 9:19 p.m.; second by Commissioner Ritz III Yeas – 5; Nays - 0. The 
motion was adopted. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 Sabrina, Town Clerk  

 Minutes Approved On:   

 

 

 

 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 10 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
B. POLICE REPORT 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 11 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 

C. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

Town Manager’s Report 

March 2023 

Prepared by Cathy Willets  

Streets: 
• Staff replaced and repaired some street signs around town.  
• Staff conducted monthly street sweeping. 
• Staff repaired streetlights. 
• Staff conducted monthly storm drain inlet cleaning. 
• Staff repainted yellow curb in front of #68 fire hydrant on North Seton Ave. 
• Staff assisted with collecting parking meter money. 

 
 Parks: 

• Staff conducted daily park checks – trash cans, cameras, dog waste stations, restrooms.  
• Staff mowed, trimmed, weed killed in parks. 
• Staff cut up some tree limbs that fell by the dog park and along the walking trail. 
• Staff picked up leaves along Memorial Park ballfield fences. 
• Contractor prepped ballfields #1 and #3 in E. Eugene Myers Park.  
• Staff prepared and cleaned all park restroom buildings.  Staff also repaired some sinks 

and toilets. 

Water: 

• Rainbow Lake is at the spillway level (16.6 feet). 
• The roughing filters are being backwashed three times a day.  The DE filters are getting one 

week runs. 
• Well levels (optimum level was determined to be May 2011).  

 
 May 2011  March  Change 

o Well #1:   35’  36’  -1’           
o Well #2:   8’  12’  -4’              
o Well #3:   12’  26’  -14’           
o Well #4:   108’  OFF’  N/A        
o Well #5:   10’  OFF’  N/A 

 
• Water production and consumption.  We produced an average of 227,896 GPD.  We 

consumed an average of 242,754 GPD (finish water + MSM).  The amount of Backwash 
Water in the month of March is ... (12.7%).  
 

• 36.26% of this water came from wells. 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 12 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

•  5.52% of this water came from Mt. St. Mary's. 
• 58.22% of this water came from Rainbow Lake.  

 
We purchased 456,700 gallons of water from MSM this month.  
 
Wastewater: 

 We treated an average of 485,430 gpd (consumed 242,754 GPD) which means that 
49.99% of the wastewater treated this month was "wild water".   

 We had no spills of untreated sewage in the month of March. 
 We did exceed the plant’s design capacity ten (10) times time in the month of March. 

**Some of these flows are due to running the transfer pump. 
o 948,000gpd 03/4  841,000gpd 03/5 835,000gpd 03/9 
o 915,000gpd 03/10  869,000gpd 03/11 983,000gpd 03/12 
o 756,000gpd 03/24  893,000gpd 03/25 812,000gpd 03/26 
o 782,000gpd 03/27 

 
 We received about 3.6” of precipitation this month (the average is 4.05”).   We have a 

precipitation SURPLUS of 1.9” over the last six months.  The average precipitation 
for the period from October through March 31 is 20.25“.  We have received 22.15“ 
for that period.   

 
Trash:  Trash pickup will remain Mondays in the month of May except for Memorial Day trash 
will be picked up on May 30th. 
  
Meetings Attended: 

• 03/09 Attended staff FY24 budget meeting. 
• 03/10 Attended staff FY24 budget meeting. 
• 03/13  Met with Mayor 
• 03/13 Attended Town Meeting 
• 03/14 Met with Commissioner Boehmann-Pollitt and Town Accountant re: water rates. 
• 03/15 Attended staff FY24 budget meeting. 
• 03/15 Met with Tom Ward and Amanda Haddaway re: employment questions 
• 03/16 Met with Mayor 
• 03/17 Zoom call with Town Planner and Stormwater consultant re: FY24 projects 
• 03/21 Conducted employee performance evaluation reviews. 
• 03/22 Met with Town Clerk re: ordinance writing. 
• 03/23 Attended public bid opening for the CRPS. 
• 03/23 Met with Mayor 
• 03/27 Zoom call with Town Attorney, Chris Jakubiak and Town Planner re: upcoming 

planning commission meeting. 
• 03/30 Met with Mayor 

 
Noteworthy: 

• Staff pumps holding tank every 10 days at 8533 Hampton Valley Rd. 
• Staff worked the yard waste dumpster twice in March. 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 13 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

• Staff conducted monthly equipment and fire extinguisher maintenance. 
• Staff did some water meter upgrades.  
• Staff working on water conservation plan for MDE. 
• Staff ran tests with new hydrant PSI data logger to ensure nothing is wrong with the 

pressure reducing valves. 
• Frederick County will be sampling Turkey Creek (feeds Rainbow Lake). 
• Backflow preventers were tested and passed at the WTP. 
• Staff working on Consumer Confidence Report.  State tested for PFAS in 2021 and 

results showed “non-detect.” 
• Staff working with contractor to get backwash pond pumped. 
• Staff gave a tour to University of Maryland students at WWTP. 
• Staff working on the DO project in the biolac.   
• Staff reported some issues with Rutters’ pump station.  Rutters’ was quick to respond and 

is working on the problems. 
• Staff investigating some solutions to the heating system in the old lab at WWTP. 
• Staff conducted a U&O inspection at 322 South Seton Ave. 
• Staff conducted quarterly water meter readings and 24 re-reads. 
• Staff mowed, weed ate, weed killed and staked around some manholes in fields. 
• Staff installed new repair kit on #84 fire hydrant that was hit by tractor trailer. 
• Staff worked with contractor replacing a section of sewer service line at 600 East Main 

St. 
 
 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 14 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 

PARKING ENFORCEMENT REPORT 
PARKING ENFORCEMENT REPORT 

April 2023 

 

*All information accurate as of April 20th includes violations starting from March 27th  

 
 
 
 
 

Overtime Parking  57 
Restricted Parking Zone   

Parked in Crosswalk  
Parked on Sidewalk/Curb   

Parked by Fire Hydrant   
Parked Blocking Street  

Parked Blocking Driveway  
Failure to Park between Lines  6 

Left Side Parking   
Parked in Handicapped Space 1 

48 Consecutive Hours  
Total Tickets - Warnings 62 6 

 Meter Money $1153.24 
   Meter Reservations Daily Reservations:  

2 
$40 

Funeral Home Reservations: 
0 

Parking Permits by Type 3M: 2 6M: 1 1Y: 0 
Parking Permits Money $275 

Violation Cost $605 
Late Fees Assessed $105 
Payment Received $225 

Dues Forward $465 
Totals March:   Made 

$1753.24 
Due 
$465 

Totals 2023 Violations Paid 
$1655 

Outstanding Bal. 
$1500 

Meter 
Money 

$4460.35 

Permit 
Revenue 

$1100 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 15 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
GRANT ADMINSTRATOR REPORT 
 

As of April 25, 2023 
Grants Administrator Report 

Prepared By: Madeline Shaw, Grants Administrator 
 
ACTIVE GRANTS/PROJECTS (20 TOTAL) 
#22-1, USDA New Public Works Equipment for $168,900 (match of $128,500) 

• For purchase of a 4x4 work truck, backhoe loader, multi-user tractor, WWTP SCADA. 
• Status – Backhoe, multi-use tractor, and 4x4 truck delivered. SCADA 98% completed. 

Waiting on final equipment to arrive for SCADA. Once all invoices are received final 
report will be submitted.  

#22-6, POS New Bathroom/Concession Stand for $147,980 ($89,000 match) 
#22-7, LPPI New Bathroom/Concession Stand for $62,290 (no match) 

• For construction of a new bathroom/concession stand combo building in Community 
Park. 

• Status – Waiting on electrical conduit and transformer to be installed in April/May. 
Waiting on full approval of site plan. Need to order pre-fabricated building, then hire 
contractor to prepare site for delivery (water/sewer/electrical/stone pad).  

USDA Creamery Road Pump Station Replacement $1,862,300 grant, $1,987,000 loan, 
$1,395,000 Town 

• For replacement of Creamery Road Pump Station will new sewage pump station. 
• Status – Board to approve construction company on May 1st. Applied for additional 

funding and was awarded an additional $1-million grant on April 5, 2023. Total project 
cost now $5,244,300. Continuing to submit monthly reports to USDA.  

Maryland Dept. of General Services, Water Treatment Plant Clarifier $1,000,000 bond 
• Status – Assisting with management of this project starting April 25, 2023. 

#23-2, TRIPP Emmitsburg Advertising for $2,963 ($1,481 match) 
• For advertising Emmitsburg in Celebrate Gettysburg, Visit Frederick and Montgomery 

Magazine. 
• Status – ads placed in Celebrate Gettysburg (March/April, May/June) and Visit Frederick 

(2023), and Montgomery Magazine (April/May, May/June) so far. 
#23-3, DHCD Community Legacy Façade Improvements FY2023 for $50,000 

• Provide property owners in sustainable community’s district with 50/50 funds to fix-up 
property 

• Status – Sustainable Communities Work Group met on Jan. 26th and Mar. 2nd. Projects 
submitted to Maryland DHCD on Mar. 3rd for approval. 10 total projects, 6 have been 
notified of award amount and 4 are awaiting State approval before the property owner 
will be notified of award. 

#23-4, CP&P Silo Hill Playground Improvements for $146,263 (no match) 
• To replace old swing set and playground tower and install half basketball court. 
• Status – Playground and hoop installation completed Jan. 27. Half basketball court 

installed April 14. Waiting on lining of basketball court, then project is complete.    
#23-5, POS Rainbow Lake Parking Lot for $70,000 ($37,500 match) 
#23-13, LPPI Rainbow Lake Parking Lot for $44,500 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 16 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

• For SWM plan and to pave a 10 to 12 space parking lot at Rainbow Lake.  
• Status – State approved Feb. 15. The Town requested estimates from engineering 

companies, which are due April 28. Planning to begin project in May with approved 
engineer.   

#23-6, POS Community Park Cornhole for $6,000 ($2,00 match) 
• For installing two pairs of permanent concrete cornhole boards in Community Park. 
• Status – State approved on Jan. 25. Cornhole boards ordered April 18. There is a 16 week 

lead time with production/shipping. Planning to install mid-August once they arrive.  
 
 
 
#23-7, POS Outdoor Storybook Trail for $8,250 ($2,750 match) 

• For installation of 20 single pedestal exhibits that would display exchangeable storybook 
pages. 

• Status – State approved on Jan. 25. Equipment ordered Mar. 13 with a one-month lead 
time. Anticipated installation around mid to late-May.  

#23-8, MEA Streetlight & Outdoor Lighting Efficiency Pilot for $27,500 (15% of total 
project match) 
#23-10, USDA Downtown Streetlight Replacement for $75,000 
#23-11, USDA Downtown Streetlight Replacement for $50,000 
#23-17, DHCD Operating Assistance Grant – Main Street Improvement Grant for $10,000 

• Replace 102 streetlights along Main Street / Seton Avenue with new LED dimmable 
cutoff lights. 

• Status – waiting on town budget transfer in May to fund remainder of project. Request for 
proposal for purchase and removal/installation of lights to be advertised in May with 
Board approval in July. 

#23-12, DHCD Business District and Neighborhood Safety Grant for $85,000 (no match) 
1. Purchase two portable radar speed trailers and two surveillance cameras for town square. 
2. Status – Both speed trailers have been ordered and delivered this month. Surveillance 

cameras to be installed in April, then grant will be complete. 
#23-14, LPPI Community Park Pavilion Improvements for $30,500 

• For new pavilion roof, repair rotting wood, pressure wash, sand/stain, replace 10 picnic 
tables. 

• Status – collecting three estimates for work, need to order tables. 
#23-15, LPPI Memorial Park Pavilion Improvements for $22,000 

• To repair pavilion rotting wood, pressure wash, sand/stain, replace 11 picnic tables. 
• Status – work scheduled with contractor, need to order tables. 

#23-16, LPPI Baseball Field Bat/Helmet Racks for $3,000 
• To purchase bat/helmet racks for remaining three ballfield dugouts (fields #5, #4 and #2). 
• Status – Bat/helmet racks ordered on March 31. 

 
PENDING GRANTS (WAITING FOR ANNOUNCEMENT) (8 TOTAL) 
MWIFA Drinking Water Revolving Loan and/or Water Supply Grant for $2,255,552 
submitted 01/31/22 

1. North Seton Avenue waterline replacement $1,145,552 
2. DePaul Street waterline replacement $1,110,000 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 17 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

DNR Community Parks and Playgrounds FY2024 – 2 Totaling $120,686 submitted 
08/24/22 

3. Install half basketball court in Memorial Park $15,000 
4. Install playground addition via Timber Stacks play equipment in Memorial Park 

$105,686 
MWIFA Emmitsburg Transmission Main Replacement, submitted 01/31/2023 

5. To replace 10-inch mountain main into Town with 16-inch to improve water quality and 
fire flow. 

TRIPP Advertising Grant for $7,333.32, submitted 03/31/2023 
6. Advertising of Emmitsburg as a tourism destination via three billboards in the Gettysburg 

area and two annual print publications (Destination Gettysburg and Visit Frederick 
guide). 

FCTC, Main Street Cooperative Fund for $10,000, submitted on 04/01/2023 
7. New welcome to Emmitsburg signs (estimated $5,000). 
8. Remaining money to aid in parking meter purchase. 

 
UPCOMING GRANTS (TO APPLY FOR) 

1. Operating Assistance Grant – Main Street Improvement grant, due April 28, 2023 
2. USDA Community Facility grant, rolling deadline first-come first-served 

o To purchase replacement coin/credit card combo parking meters 
3. Program Open Space FY24, due May 5, 2023 
4. Community Development Block Grant, due around June 2023 
5. Community Legacy grant, due around July 1, 2023 
6. And other grants as funding is found/needed 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 18 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
D. TOWN PLANNER’S REPORT  

 
 
 

Memo 
     March 2023 Planner Report 

Prepared by: Najila Ahsan 

1. Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4): 
• Silo Hill SWM basin retrofit & tree planting project management. 

o IIJA DNR Progress Report 

2. Code Enforcement & Permits: 
• Processed the following permit applications: 

o  3 Zoning 

• 1 – Patio 15’ x 17’ and walkway; 17492 Irishtown Rd. 

• 1 – Use n Occupancy; 101 Silo Hill Rd. #5 

• 1 – Sign permit for 2 signs; Emmitsburg East Industrial Park Lot 5 

o 1 Street Closure 

• Vigilant Hose Company event 

• May 13, 2023 

• Between Creamery Way and entrance to Mother Seton 

School 

o 5 Cross Connection  

• 36 Provincial Pkwy 

• 8 E. Main St. 

• 5 Irishtown Ct. 

• 4 Robindale Dr. 

• 17335 Mt. View Rd. 

3. Planning Commission (PC): 
• April 24, 2023 

o Conditional approval of Swomley Division Addition Plat 

o Conditional approval of Silo Hill Plaza Site Plan 

o Conditional approval of Silo Hill Plaza Improvement Plat 

o Discussion: Floating Zone 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 19 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

o Discussion: Comprehensive Plan  

4. Development Updates: 
• Federal Stone – Awaiting the submission of updated Site Plan and Improvement 

Plans and reviewing Payment and Performance bonds 

• Village Liquors & Plaza Inn – Owner has received conditional approval of the 

Site Plan and Improvement Plat, and is now seeking to have Stormwater 

Management and Soil Conservation plans approved by the County 

• MSM “E” Wing- Awaiting site plan 

5. Comprehensive Plan 

• Dashboard for Town Website 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 20 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
E. COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 21 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 

F. MAYORS COMMENTS 
 

Presentation at the meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 22 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
G. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 23 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 

H. ADMINSTRATIVE BUSINESS 
 

1. For consideration, FredRock Golf request for a location to place a storage shed 
in E. Eugene Myers Community Park. 

 
 

Presentation at Town Meeting by representatives of FredRock Golf. 

 
 
 
 

2. For discussion, tree replacement near parking lot in E. Eugene Myers Park. 
 

 

Presentation by Commission Boehman-Pollitt. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 24 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 

I. CONSENT AGENDA (NONE) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J. TREASUERER’S REPORT 
 
 

TOWN OF EMMITSBURG 
CASH ACTIVITY AS OF APRIL 25, 2023 
 
$8,685,739  Cash Balance April 1, 2023 

     
    325,969  Deposits 
              -335,312  Withdrawals 
            $8,676,396  Operating Balance Forward 
 
 

 
Check Amount Vendor Name Description Check Date Check Number 
$67,868 Treasurer of Frederick 

County 
3Q FY23 Law 
Enforcement Service 

04.12.23 44914 

$31,533 Frederick Beans Ford Work Truck- USDA 
Grant 

04.12.23 44928 

$31,472 Stephenson Equipment Truck Upfit- Grant #22-1 03.29.23 44871 

$24,331 Comptroller of 
Maryland 

3Q FY23 Bay 
Restoration Fee 

04.05.23 44890 

$22,472 MD Dept of Budget & 
Mgmt 

Mar 23 Health Insurance 03.29.23 44861 

$17,362 All Traffic Solution Business District Safety- 
Grant #23-12 

04.19.23 44931 

$13,728 Univar Pools Inc. Chemicals 04.12.23 44924 
$11,308 RSV Pools May 23 Pool 

Management 
04.05.23 44898 

$10,172 Chesapeake Employers 
Insurance 

CY22 Workman’s Comp 
Audit 

04.19.23 44935 

$10,047 Capital Electric Poles & Fixtures 04.05.23 44879 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 25 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
K. PLANNING COMMISISON REPORT 

 
 

Presentation at the meeting by Town Staff. 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 26 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 

L. AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #1: For consideration, approval of bid to construct the Creamery 
              Road Pump Station. 

 
 
 

1. Bid timeline information 
2. Bid tabulation (certified by engineer) 
3. Letter of recommendation from RK&K 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 27 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
 

 
TIMELINE – CREAMERY ROAD PUMP STATION CONSTRUCTION:  
 
RFP published by Town  
Pre-bid meeting (optional)                 

Thurs. Feb. 2, 2023 
Thurs. Feb. 16, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. 

DEADLINE, bids due Wed. March 22, 2023 at 4:00 p.m. 
Bids opened publicly Thurs. March 23, 2023 at 11:00 a.m. 

 
 
RFP ADVERTISEMENT: 

• Public Notice Under RFP Tab on Town’s Website:   02/02/2023 – 03/22/2023 
• Frederick News Post ads per USDA    02/02, 02/08, 02/14/2023 
• Notice on MML Classifieds:     02/02/2023 – 03/22/2023 
• RFP Published on eMaryland Marketplace:   02/02/2023 – 03/22/2023 
• Public Notice on Town Facebook Page   02/02/2023 
• Email sent to three potential contractors:   02/07/2023 

 
 
PROJECT FUNDING: 

• USDA Loan $1,987,000 
• USDA Grant $1,862,300 
• Town Match $1,395,000 
• TOTAL COST: $5,244,300  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Conewago Enterprises Inc. for $4,391,442. 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 28 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 29 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 30 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 31 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
AGENDA ITEM #2: For consideration, approval of engineering change order amendment #4  
             with RK&K for the Creamery Road Pump Station. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 32 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 33 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 

 
 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 34 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 35 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
Item Task Original Fee Revised 

Fee 
Total Fee 
Amendment 

1 Construction and Post-Construction 
Support for 450 Day Construction 
Period 

$38,416.00 $53,814.0
0 

$15,398.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 36 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 37 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
AGENDA ITEM #3: For consideration, approval of engineering change order amendment #5 
        with RK&K for the Creamery Road Pump Station. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 38 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 39 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 40 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 

Item Task Original 
Fee 

Total Fee 
after Change 
Orders to 
date 

Revised Fee Total Fee 
Amendment 

1 Construction and Post-
Construction Support for 
BABAA 

$38,416.00 $53,814.00 $67,518.00 $13,704.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 41 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 42 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
AGEND ITEM # 4: For consideration, approval of supplemental Resolution 2023-02R to replace 
           the terms of the Creamery Road Pump Station replacement projects interim  
           financing.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 43 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

RESOLUTION: 2023  Page 1 of 3 
RESOLUTION NO. 23 – 02R 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION 

CREAMERY ROAD PUMP STATION REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

****************************************************************************** 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) for the Town of Emmitsburg (the 
“Town”) previously adopted Resolution No. 2020-12R on November 2, 2020 (the “Prior 
Resolutions”), which, among other things, authorized and approved the proposal for interim 
financing from CoBank N.A. (“CoBank”), made in connection with the removal and replacement 
of the exiting Creamery Road Pump Station (the “Original CoBank Proposal”); 
 
 WHEREAS, since the adoption of the Prior Resolutions, there have been certain changes 
made to the Original CoBank Proposal; 
 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to take further action to supplement the Prior Resolutions 
in order to replace the terms of the Original CoBank Proposal with the terms of the CoBank 
proposal dated as of January 4, 2023, and attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “New CoBank 
Proposal”); 

 
WHEREAS, the financing contemplated by the New CoBank Proposal constitutes the 

interim financing authorized in Ord. NO: 20-11 adopted by the Board on November 2, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, except as expressly set forth herein, all terms used herein and defined in the 

Prior Resolutions shall have the meanings assigned thereto in the Prior Resolutions. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That, except as expressly set forth below, the 
Board hereby confirms the Prior Resolutions in all respects. 
 

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the New CoBank Proposal is hereby approved and 
authorized in all respects. 

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the foregoing Resolutions are intended to supplement the Prior 
Resolutions, which shall continue to remain in effect, unless otherwise revised herein, except that, to the 
extent the foregoing Resolutions are inconsistent with the Prior Resolutions, the foregoing Resolutions shall 
supersede the Prior Resolutions. 

FURTHER RESOLVED: That any and all actions previously taken by the Mayor or Town Clerk, 
respectively, on behalf of the Town, in respect of the transactions and execution of documents contemplated 
by or relating to the foregoing Resolutions or the Prior Resolutions, are hereby ratified, approved and 
confirmed in all respects. 

 
 

[Signatures Appear on Following Page] 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 44 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

RESOLUTION: 2023  Page 2 of 3 
RESOLUTION NO. 23 – 02R 

PASSED this ___  day of May, 2023 by a vote of: 
 

Commissioners: For Against Absent Abstain 
O’Donnell     
Sweeney     
Ritz III     
Davis     
Boehman-Pollitt     
TOTAL:     

 
 
ATTEST:       EMMITSBURG BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
 
 
    
   

Sabrina King, Town Clerk  Timothy J. Donnell, President 
 
 

______APPROVED    _______VETOED 
 
 

this _______ day of May, 2023. 
 
 

________________________ 
Donald N. Briggs, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cathy Willets
See previous comment



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 45 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

RESOLUTION: 2023  Page 3 of 3 
RESOLUTION NO. 23 – 02R 

EXHIBIT A 

COBANK PROPOSAL 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 46 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 

AGENDA ITEM #5: Initial presentation of Fiscal Year 2024 budget. 

 
 

Presentation at Town meeting by Mayor and Town Staff. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 47 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
AGENDA ITEM #6: For consideration, FY22 budget transfers to the capital projects for  
        consideration. 
 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 48 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
 

May 1, 2023 
Town of Emmitsburg  
Agenda Items 

 

Upon completion of the FY22 audit the Town of Emmitsburg had additional revenues 
over expenses in the General Fund in the amount of $357,977.  These additional funds 
are now available for allocation within the General & Capital Projects Funds.   
     
 
FY22 General Fund Excess Transfer to General & Capital Projects Funds  

 
It is recommended by Town Staff that $357,977 be transferred to the following  
General & Capital Fund categories if so approved by the Board of Commissioners; 
 
 
 General Fund 

• 10 Legislative – Legal Fees (1-5501-10-999-1)……....……………$25,000 
• 12 Planning – Legal Fees (1-5501-12-999-1)…………………………30,000 
• 12 Planning -  Contractual (1-5505-12-999-1)……………………….42,000 
• 30 Streets – Salaries (1-5001-30-999-1)………………………………..25,000 

 
                                                                  General Fund Total:  $122,000 
 
Capital Fund  

 
• 30 Streets – 385 – Curbs, Gutters, Sidewalks, & Roads………..............75,000 
• 30 Streets – 617 – Streetlights…………………………………………..72,000 
• 60 Parks – 191 – Pool………………………………………………….....5,300 
• 60 Parks – 500 – Rainbow Lake……..…………………………………..37,850 
• 60 Parks – 870 – CIP Town Reserve – Grant Matches………………….24,327 
• 60 Parks – 999 – General………………………………………………...21,500 

 
                                                                                     Capital Fund Total:  $235,977 

 
 

                      Grand Total:  $357,977 
 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 49 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
AGENDA ITEM #7: For consideration, approval of policy P23-01 adding one month and 
        one-year options to the parking permits.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 50 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

POLICY SERIES:  2023                                                        Page 50 of 52 
Policy No. P23 - 01 

 
 

TOWN OF EMMITSBURG 
Parking Permits and Fees 

 
************************************************************************************ 
This Policy will replace previously adopted policy P18 – 03 on parking citations and meter 
permits. 
 
As of this date and pursuant to Title 10, Section 10.12 entitled Stopping, Standing and Parking, 
and Section 10.16 entitled Parking Meters of the Emmitsburg Municipal Code, parking 
violations fines and parking permit fees shall be as follows:   
 
A. All parking violations will be still fined according to the current fee schedule as previously 

established in P18-03:  
 

Violation: Fine: After 20 Days: 
Overtime Parking $10.00 $25.00 
Restricted Parking Zone $15.00 $30.00 
Parked In Crosswalk $25.00 $35.00 
Parked On Sidewalk/Curb $25.00 $35.00 
Parked Blocking Driveway $25.00 $35.00 
Parked by Fire Hydrant $40.00 $55.00 
Parked Blocking Street $40.00 $55.00 
Failure To Park Between Lines $15.00 $30.00 
Left Side Parking $15.00 $30.00 
Snow Emergency Route $25.00 $35.00 
Parking for 48 Consecutive Hours  $15.00 $30.00 
   

 
 
B. Parking permit and Parking Bag charges will be according to the following fee schedule:  

 
*THE ONE MONTH PERMIT WILL BE OFFERED AS AUTOMATICALLY RENEWING 
PARKING PASS* 

 
 

Time Frame: Cost: 
Daily Bag $5.00 
One (1) Month Permit* $20.00 
Three (3) Month Permit [$60.00] $57.00 
Six (6) Month Permit [$115.00] $108.00 
Twelve (12) Month Permit [$230.00] $204.00 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 51 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

POLICY SERIES:  2023                                                        Page 51 of 52 
Policy No. P23 - 01 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, ENACTED AND ORDAINED that this policy shall take 
effect this 1st day of May, 2023. 

 
PASSED this ___ day of ________, 2023 by a vote of: 

Commissioners: For Against Absent Abstain 
O’Donnell     
Sweeney     
Ritz III     
Davis     
Boehman-Pollitt     
TOTAL:     

 
 
      ATTEST:             EMMITSBURG BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
    
 
 
      ___________________________           ___________________________________ 

Sabrina King, Town Clerk      Timothy J. O’Donnell, President 
 
 

______ APPROVED    _____VETOED 
 

this 1st day of May, 2023. 
 
 
 

 
____________________________ 

Donald N. Briggs, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 52 of 52 
May 1, 2023 

 
M. SET AGENDA FOR NEXT MEETING: JUNE 5, 2023 

 
 
1. 
 
2. 
 
3. 
 
4. 
 
5. 
 
Administrative Business: 
 
A. 
 
B. 
 
C. 

 
 
 

 


